
The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of disability, as no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the 

benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a person with a disability, including a communication disability, and require 

special assistance in order to participate in the meeting or need language service assistance, please contact the Santa Cruz County 

Probation Department at (831) 454-3105 (TDD: call 711) at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements. 

Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternate format.  

Por favor haga arreglos anticipadamente por teléfono al número (831) 454-3105. 

 

 

Thursday, May 23, 2024 Santa Cruz County Probation Offices – Training Room 

9:00 – 9:45 a.m. 303 Water Street. Suite. 9, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

The three goals of the Santa Cruz County Community Corrections Partnership are: 

I. Establish an array of effective alternatives to incarceration to address the impacts that the realigned population will have on the county jail 
in order to avert crowding and poor conditions of confinement without jeopardizing public safety outcomes;

II. Implement Evidence-Based Probation Supervision that properly assesses risk factors associated with recidivism and provides effective
probation interviewing, case planning, and community supervision to ensure public safety and reduce recidivism; and

III. Develop community partnerships for effective intervention services that adhere to the principles of evidence-based practices for maximum 
recidivism reduction.

I. CALL TO ORDER: Meeting called to order at 9:02 a.m.

*Denotes voting member

Proxy: Tara George is proxy for District Attorney Jeff Rosell 

   Kimberly Petersen is proxy for Director Randy Morris 

II. CONSENT AGENDA: Heather Rogers moved to approve the Consent Agenda (Approval of Agenda, Approval

of Minutes from the January 11, 2024, meeting); Sasha Morgan seconded.

Motion Passed 

Yes: Rogers, Morgan, Giraldo, Dally, George 

No: None 

Abstain: None 

Absent: Morales, Hart 

District Attorney’s Office  Tara George, Chief Deputy District Attorney *  

Health Services Agency  Monica Morales, Director of Health Services Agency * (absent)  

Sheriff’s Office  Jim Hart, Sheriff- Coroner * (absent) 

Probation Department  Fernando Giraldo, Chief Probation Officer *  

Public Defender  Heather Rogers, Public Defender *  

Superior Court of Santa Cruz  Sasha Morgan, Court Executive Officer *  

Capitola Police Department  Andrew Dally, Chief of Police *  

County Office of Education  Faris Sabbah, Superintendent of Schools (absent) 

Health Services Agency  Casey Swank, Chief of Substance Use Disorders Programs 

District Attorney’s Office  Laura Espindola, Manager of Victim Witness Assistance Program 

Human Services Department  Kimberly Petersen, Asst. Director of Human Services Department 

County Administrator’s Office Nicole Coburn, Assistant CAO 

Human Services Department  Andrew Stone, Director of Workforce Investment Board (absent) 

Santa Cruz Volunteer Center  Karen Delaney, Executive Director 

County of Santa Cruz 
Santa Cruz County Community Corrections Partnership 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

1



Community Corrections Partnership Minutes 

May 23, 2024 

Page 2 

The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of disability, as no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the 

benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a person with a disability, including a communication disability, and require 

special assistance in order to participate in the meeting or need language service assistance, please contact the Santa Cruz County 

Probation Department at (831) 454-3105 (TDD: call 711) at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements. 

Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternate format.  

Por favor haga arreglos anticipadamente por teléfono al número (831) 454-3105. 

III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: None. 

 

IV. ORAL REPORTS AND ACTION ITEMS: 

 

1. Report on CAFES Cohort III Program (Proposition 47): Assistant Division Director Hugo Calderon shared 

that the CAFES Cohort 3 Program had a site visit from Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) 

on March 29, 2024. The BSCC Field Representative was pleased with the ease of access across the various 

components of the grant and the expansion of diversion opportunities as provided by our partners. 

 

Asst. Division Director Calderon also shared that a new Collaborative Court Liaison has been hired. This 

contracted position through Goodwill will assist expediting Substance Use Disorder (SUD) assessments, 

casework coordination, and light case management work. 

2. Approve Review Panel’s Rankings for AB109 Treatment and Intervention Services Request for Proposals – 

RFP 23P3-014 – (Action Item): Chief Probation Officer Fernando Giraldo 

Heather Rogers moved to approve the Review Panel’s Rankings for AB109 Treatment and Intervention 

Services Request for Proposals – RFP 23P3-014; Tara George seconded. 

 

Motion Passed 

 Yes: Rogers, Morgan, Giraldo, Dally, George 

 No: None 

 Abstain: None 

 Absent: Morales, Hart 

3. Approve Request for the CCP to Serve as Local Advisory Committee for Proposition 47 Cohort IV 

Proposal (Action Item): Sr. Behavioral Health Manager – HSA, Casey Swank 

 Sasha Morgan moved to approve the Community Corrections Partnership (CCP) to Serve as Local 

Advisory Committee for Proposition 47 Cohort IV Proposal; Heather Rogers seconded. 

  

Motion Passed 

 Yes: Rogers, Morgan, Giraldo, Dally, George 

 No: None 

 Abstain: None 

 Absent: Morales, Hart 

4. Report on Sheriff’s Sobering Center and Medically Assisted Treatment (MAT) Grant: Sheriff’s Office 

Chief Deputy Daniel Freitas 

 Amber Williams, Chief Executive Officer of Janus of Santa Cruz reported on the Sobering Center. See 

attached PowerPoint. 

 Chief Dan Freitas reported on the Medically Assisted Treatment (MAT) Grant. See attached PowerPoint. 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 9:54 a.m. 

2



The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of disability, as no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the 

benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a person with a disability, including a communication disability, and require 

special assistance in order to participate in the meeting or need language service assistance, please contact the Santa Cruz County 

Probation Department at (831) 454-3105 (TDD: call 711) at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements. 

Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternate format.  

Por favor haga arreglos anticipadamente por teléfono al número (831) 454-3105. 

 

 

Thursday, May 23, 2024 Santa Cruz County Probation Offices – Training Room 

9:00 – 9:45 a.m. 303 Water Street. Suite. 9, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

The three goals of the Santa Cruz County Community Corrections Partnership are: 

I. Establish an array of effective alternatives to incarceration to address the impacts that the realigned population will have on the county jail 
in order to avert crowding and poor conditions of confinement without jeopardizing public safety outcomes;

II. Implement Evidence-Based Probation Supervision that properly assesses risk factors associated with recidivism and provides effective
probation interviewing, case planning, and community supervision to ensure public safety and reduce recidivism; and

III. Develop community partnerships for effective intervention services that adhere to the principles of evidence-based practices for maximum 
recidivism reduction.

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. CONSENT AGENDA:

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes from the January 11, 2024, meeting

III. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: Members of the public are allowed 3 minutes to address any item pertaining

to the CCP, but not on the Agenda.

IV. ORAL REPORTS AND ACTION ITEMS:

1. Report on CAFES Cohort III Program (Proposition 47): Assistant Division Director Hugo Calderon

2. Approve Review Panel’s Rankings for AB109 Treatment and Intervention Services Request for Proposals –

RFP 23P3-014 – (Action Item): Chief Probation Officer Fernando Giraldo

3. Approve Request for the CCP to Serve as Local Advisory Committee for Proposition 47 Cohort IV

Proposal (Action Item): Sr. Behavioral Health Manager – HSA, Casey Swank

4. Report on Sheriff’s Sobering Center and Medically Assisted Treatment (MAT) Grant: Sheriff’s Office

Chief Deputy Daniel Freitas

V. ADJOURNMENT

County of Santa Cruz 
Santa Cruz County Community Corrections Partnership 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

3



The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of disability, as no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the 

benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a person with a disability, including a communication disability, and require 

special assistance in order to participate in the meeting or need language service assistance, please contact the Santa Cruz County 

Probation Department at (831) 454-3105 (TDD: call 711) at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements. 

Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternate format.  

Por favor haga arreglos anticipadamente por teléfono al número (831) 454-3105. 

 

 

January 11, 2024 Santa Cruz County Probation Offices – Training Room 

3:30 – 4:30 p.m. 303 Water St. Ste. 9, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

The three goals of the Santa Cruz County Community Corrections Partnership are: 

I. Establish an array of effective alternatives to incarceration to address the impacts that the realigned population will have on the county jail 
in order to avert crowding and poor conditions of confinement without jeopardizing public safety outcomes;

II. Implement Evidence-Based Probation Supervision that properly assesses risk factors associated with recidivism and provides effective
probation interviewing, case planning, and community supervision to ensure public safety and reduce recidivism; and

III. Develop community partnerships for effective intervention services that adhere to the principles of evidence-based practices for maximum 
recidivism reduction.

I. CALL TO ORDER: Meeting called to order at 3:32 p.m.

*Denotes voting member

Proxy: Tara George is proxy for District Attorney Jeff Rosell 

   Kimberly Petersen is proxy for Director Randy Morris 

II. REVIEW OF AGENDA: (verbal)

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion to approve the October 30, 2023, Minutes made by Chief Andrew Dally

and seconded by Tara George.

Motion Passed 

Aye: Rogers, Morgan, Giraldo, Dally, George 

No: None 

Absent: Morales, Hart 

District Attorney’s Office  Tara George, Chief Deputy District Attorney *  

Health Services Agency  Monica Morales, Director of Health Services Agency * (absent)  

Sheriff’s Office  Jim Hart, Sheriff- Coroner * (absent) 

Probation Department  Fernando Giraldo, Chief Probation Officer *  

Public Defender  Heather Rogers, Public Defender *  

Superior Court of Santa Cruz  Sasha Morgan, Court Executive Officer *  

Capitola Police Department  Andrew Dally, Chief of Police *  

County Office of Education  Faris Sabbah, Superintendent of Schools  

Health Services Agency  Casey Swank, Chief of Substance Use Disorders Programs 

District Attorney’s Office  Laura Espindola, Manager of Victim Witness Assistance Program 

Human Services Department  Kimberly Petersen, Asst. Director of Human Services Department 

County Administrator’s Office Nicole Coburn, Assistant CAO 

Human Services Department  Andrew Stone, Director of Workforce Investment Board (absent) 

Santa Cruz Volunteer Center  Karen Delaney, Executive Director 

County of Santa Cruz 
Santa Cruz County Community Corrections Partnership 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA

4



Community Corrections Partnership Minutes 

January 11, 2024 

Page 2 

The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of disability, as no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the 

benefits of its services, programs, or activities. If you are a person with a disability, including a communication disability, and require 

special assistance in order to participate in the meeting or need language service assistance, please contact the Santa Cruz County 

Probation Department at (831) 454-3105 (TDD: call 711) at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in order to make arrangements. 

Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternate format.  

Por favor haga arreglos anticipadamente por teléfono al número (831) 454-3105. 

IV. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: Karen Delaney shared that the Volunteer Center’s winter drive has been very

successful, and they have extra coats and would like to share with their partners. Please contact her if interested.

V. ORAL REPORTS AND ACTION ITEMS

1. Adult Probation Initiatives and Updates: Sarah Fletcher

Division Director Sarah Fletcher shared that Probation submitted final report for second phase of Reducing 

Revocations Challenge and that the second cohort of staff have been selected for the Coaching Network as part 

of this initiative. Probation will be working to coordinate with law enforcement partners and the District 

Attorney’s Office to be in line with the changes to AB723. 

2. Santa Cruz County Bench Warrant Relief Day 2024: Lori Feldstein

Asst. Division Director Lori Feldstein shared information about the first of its kind event. Court stakeholders 

will be on site at the event to provide bench warrant relief for individuals who qualify. Please see the attached 

flyer. 

2. Report on the AB109 Treatment and Intervention Services Request for Proposals: Fernando Giraldo

Chief Fernando Giraldo gave a brief presentation and timeline of the Requests for Proposal (RFP) for FY24/25. 

Please see attached. 

3. Report on CAFES Cohort III Program (Proposition 47): Hugo Calderon

Asst. Division Director Hugo Calderon shared that the Janus CAFES Connector Team is up and running and 

shared a couple informational 1-pagers. Please see attached. 

Division Director Fletcher noted that Probation will soon have a CAFES Newsletter that will highlight 

successes and allow us to share information with partners and the community. 

4. Report on State Funding and AB109 Treatment Funding Balance: Fernando Giraldo,

Chief Giraldo went over the AB109 Treatment Funding allocation. Please see attached. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 4:10 p.m.

5



RFP 23P3-014 AB109 Treatment and Intervention Services Proposal Ranking 

Service Area/Sub-Area Organization Program

1.1 Cognitive/Behavioral Curricula: Batterer 
Intervention & Anger Management Classes 

Volunteer Center Batterer Intervention & Anger Management 
Classes 

Monarch Services Batterer Intervention Classes (Positive 
Solutions)

1.2  Victim/Offender Dialog & Reconciliation Conflict Resolution Center Reconciliation Project

1.3  Cognitive/Behavioral Curricula: Parenting 
Skills and Involvement MENtors Driving Change Parenting classes/support groups

1.4  Cognitive/Behavioral Curricula: CTBI 
Curriculum Classes and Groups Volunteer Center CTBI classes / workbooks

2.1  High School Diploma/High School 
Equivalency County Office of Education HSD/HSE Program

2.2  Post Secondary Education County Office of Education Building Trades  Program

3. Employment Development Services Goodwill Multiple employment programs

4. Housing Support:  Short-Term/Bridge
Housing (no applicant) n.a.

4.2  Housing Support:  Gender-Specific 
Residential Reentry for Women Monarch Services Safe Release Program

5. Mental Health Treatment and Support Encompass ReTurn Program

6.1  Reentry Case Management and System 
Navigation: Success Center Staffing and Case 
Management

Volunteer Center Success Center Staffing and Case 
Management

6.2  Gender-Specific Reentry Support for 
Women Leaders In Community Alternatives Women's Reentry Case Management

6.3  Gang Violence Prevention Mentoring (no applicant) n.a.

7. Substance Use Disorder Education Encompass Seeking Safety
6



AB109 Request for Proposals (RFP) 2024-25
Procurement Process

The Request for Proposals (RFP) was approved by the Board of 
Supervisors and released on February 13, 2024. Twenty-eight 
proposals were submitted across seven major service categories.

Proposals were reviewed and scored by a trained panel of 20 
individuals representing law enforcement, the courts, probation, 
county departments, and community-based organizations. 
Proposals in each area were ranked based on their average 
reviewer scores.

The panel rankings will be presented for approval by the Board of 
Supervisors on June 25, 2024. We now request that the CCP 
review the rankings and recommend Board approval. 

7



Sobering Center

F e b r u a r y  1 ,  2 0 2 4 - A p r i l  3 0 ,  2 0 2 4
C o l l e c t i v e  D a t a

8



On February 1, 2024 we celebrated the grand opening of the Santa Cruz County Sobering Center. 
Situated on Water Street, just in front of the Santa Cruz County Main Jail, this facility offers a valuable 
alternative for individuals arrested for first-time DUI, public intoxication, and those under the influence 
of drugs/alcohol. Rather than being taken to the main jail, eligible individuals will be taken to the 
Sobering Center. This facilitates immediate connections to treatment for clients and expedites the 
return of law enforcement back to community safety.

Introduction

9



10



Medical Criteria at Sobering Center

Condition Medically Stable  (No EMS) Medically Unstable (Call EMS)
Heart Rate 55-120 BPM < 55 BPM or > 120

Blood Pressure
Systolic: 85-180 mmHg
Diastolic: 50-100 mmHg

Systolic: < 85mmHg or >180 mmHg
Dyastolic: < 50 mmHg or > 100 mmHg

Respiratory Rate 9-22 RPM < 9 RPM or > 22 RPM with failed intervention

Pulse Oximetry > 89% < 89%

Temperature 95-102 Degrees F < 95 degrees F or >102 Degrees F

Level of 
Consiousness

Oriented to Person and Event
Responsive to verbal stimuli

Only responsive to painful stimulus 
OR non-responsive
OR Rapid decompensation from > A&O x2 --> Difficulty 
rousing

Mental Status

Alert to Person and Event

Glasgow Coma Scale of > 11
No positive indicators from Cincinnati 
Stroke Scale

Not Alert to Person.
Hallucination
Severe, un-directable agitation
Glasgow Coma Scale of < 11

Cincinnati Stroke Scale:
Facial drooping, unexplained slurred speech, arm drifting

Shock
Visible injury or reported illness with no 
chills, fever or hypotension

Chills, fever and hypotension
OR
Anyone of above symptoms in addition to a visibly infected 
injury or reported illness. 

Withdrawal CIWA total Score < 15 with no tremor

Total CIWA Score > 10 during initial intake with symptoms 
including tremor or a BAC of 0.20 or lower.

Total CIWA: > 15 at any other point during stay.  

Condition Medically Stable  (No EMS) Medically Unstable (Call EMS)

Vomiting
Absent or with a frequency of less than 7 dry 
heaves/ purges per hour for less than 2 hours. 

Frequency greater than 7 dry heaves/purges per hour or less 
frequent that continues for more than 2 hours.

Any vomiting when patient is non-responsive or only responsive 
to painful stimuli.

Medications See Medications Protocol

TB Verified, Non-active, Latent or Treated

Suspected & non-verified, or untreated & active. 

Unintended weight loss, coughing up blood, coughing lasting > 
than 3 weeks, chest pain w/ cough.

Chest Pain Absent Present

Shortness of Breath Absent or mild chronic. Acute or severe chronic that fails to resolve with rest.

Ambulation Independent or with minimal assistance. Non-ambulatory

Seizure Absent 

Present; acute.

Postictal Phase Symptoms:
Unexplained drowsiness, confusion, disoriented, nausea, 
hypertension, headache or migraine.

Pain No new moderate or severe pain. Moderate to severe acute pain.

Diabetes See Diabetes Protocol

Pregnancy No withdrawal symptoms or complaints.

Blood sugar less than 70 or greater than 500 should not be 
accepted.

11



Length of Stay

Intoxication Verification

How Do We Measure Length of Stay?

12



Average Daily Census by Admission Type & Weekday

6
Average Daily Census

424
Total Census

13



Client Arrival Time By Offense 

14



Age & Gender Distribution 

15



Client Demographic Info

16



Length of Stay & Readmission Data 

17



Total Admissions by Agency

18



Discharge & Redirect Rationale  

19



Average Officer Time Combined Offense/Agency

20



Average Officer Time by Offense & Agency

Average Officer Time at Sobering Center
12.33 minutes

21



Areas of Focus 

A continued focus on including this 
data point for referrals. We are using 
the multiple admit data to flag high 
utilizers and offer additional supports.

We have seen an increase in Walk-ins. 
We will focus on using these 
opportunities for high touch Case 
Management. We will also be focusing 
on increasing engagement with 
individuals being released from the jail.

Officer exit times have averaged 
around 12 minutes. We will focus on 
decreasing the average turnaround 
time to under 10 minutes

Walk-insLinkage to 
Care

Officer 
Time

22



Other Services

23



Questions
??? +831-462-1060

janussc.org

200 7th St., Suite 150
Santa Cruz, CA 95062

24



Medication 
Assisted 
Treatment
D A N  F R E I TA S

S A N TA  C R U Z  C O U N T Y  S H E R I F F ’ S  
O F F I C E

25



Medication Assisted Treatment
Medication-assisted treatment (MAT) is the 
use of medications in combination with 
counseling and behavioral therapies for the 
treatment of substance use disorders. For 
those with an opioid use disorder (OUD), 
medication addresses the physical 
difficulties that one experiences when they 
stop taking opioids.

26



Overall Goal
Reduce Opiate Related Deaths

Reduce Opiate related withdrawal

Curb Opiate Cravings

Decrease Relapse

Reduce Recidivism

Improve Medical and Mental Health 
Outcomes

27



History of Jail MAT
Began in 2021

HMA Learning Collaborative Grant

Wellpath Began Administering MAT Medications

Maximum of 30 Patients 

Monthly Meetings (HSA, CBO’s, County BH, Wellpath, and HMA)

28



Turning Point

29



History of Jail MAT

Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2023 (MAT Act)

Dr. Shannon Robinson Training SC County 2023

Expanded MAT List (No barriers)

2023 HMA MAT Grant 85K

Began Injectable Medications October 2023 (Sublocade)

30



Current 
Program
Current numbers are 61 Patients 
on MAT (17 on Sublocade)

4 at Blaine St.
14 at Rountree
42 at the Main Jail

*Numbers have been as high as 
75 Patients. 

1 Wellpath MD

1 Wellpath 
Discharge Planner

1 SUD Counselor

31



MAT Grant –Board of State and 
Community Corrections – ON HOLD

April 2024
Sheriff’s Office 

awarded a three-
year grant

MAT Program 
Coordinator 

(County Position)

SUD Counselor 
(Contract w/ 

CBO)

Additional 
funding for 
Injectable 
Medicine

32



Future Plans- MAT
• Additional SUD Counseling (groups)

• Expand Injectable Medicine Program

o Include Brixadi (7 day or monthly)

• Increased Discharged planning for MAT 
Patients

• Utilization of Sobering Center for Warm 
handoffs to CBO.

• Track additional data points

33



Questions

34


	5-23-24 CCP Meeting Approved Minutes.pdf
	May 23 2024 CCP Meeting Draft Minutes Packet.pdf
	Binder4.pdf
	May 23 2024 CCP Meeting Agenda Packet v2.pdf
	May 23 2024 CCP Meeting Agenda Packet.pdf
	May 23 2024 CCP Meeting Agenda Packet.pdf
	5-28-24 CCP Meeting Agenda.pdf



	1.11.24 CCP Approved Meeting Minutes.pdf
	May 23 2024 CCP Meeting Agenda Packet v2
	May 23 2024 CCP Meeting Agenda Packet
	CCP May 23 Slides v.3.pdf
	Slide Number 6



	CCP May 23 Slides v.4.pdf
	Slide Number 5

	Sobering Center Community Corrections Partnership 5.23.24.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17

	MAT CCP 2024.pdf
	Medication Assisted Treatment
	Medication Assisted Treatment
	Overall Goal	
	History of Jail MAT
	Turning Point
	History of Jail MAT
	Current Program
	MAT Grant –Board of State and Community Corrections – ON HOLD
	Future Plans- MAT
	Questions






